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Sanchez, Rodzandra (COE)

From: Turay, Radia (COE)

Sent: Wednesday, July 25, 2018 5:14 PM

To: Sanchez, Rodzandra (COE); Diaz-Greco, Gilma M. (COE)

Cc: Perez, Martha D. (COE)

Subject: FW: INQ 18-181, Debra Graham, Division Chief, Miami-Dade Corrections and

Rehabilitation Department (Outside Employment)

Attachments: Debra Graham OE Request Form.pdf

From: Turay, Radia (COE)
Sent: Wednesday, July 25, 2018 5:14 PM
To: Graham, Debra (MDCR) <Debra.Graham@miamidade.gov>
Cc: Kirkland, Tina (MDCR) <Tina.Kirkland@miamidade.gov>; Centorino, Joseph (COE)
<Joseph.Centorino@miamidade.gov>; Murawski, Michael P. (COE) <Michael.Murawski@miamidade.gov>
Subject: INQ 18-181, Debra Graham, Division Chief, Miami-Dade Corrections and Rehabilitation Department (Outside
Employment)

Dear Chief Graham,

You have inquired whether a conflict of interest exists under the Ethics Code between your County employment and your
proposed outside employment as a consultant with DBS Environmental Health and Nutritional Consulting, LLC.

Background

You are the Division Chief for the Regulatory & Compliance Division of Miami-Dade Corrections and Rehabilitation
Department (MDCR). Your job responsibilities include supervising the Food Services Bureau; the Compliance, Inspections
and Auditing Bureau; and the Office of Performance Improvement and Management.

As the Commander for the Food Services Bureau you oversee the feeding of inmates incarcerated in MDCR facilities,
producing an average of 13,000 meals per day. You duties as Captain of MDCR’s Compliance, Inspections and Auditing
Bureau include overseeing MDCR’s compliance with correctional and accreditation standard; completing monthly facility
inspections for safety and security; auditing various functions, such as fire and life safety, key control, security equipment;
and reviewing all Uses of Force incidents for trends, commonalities, violations. Your responsibilities regarding MDCR’s
Office of Performance Improvement and Management include directing and monitoring MDCR’s strategic system of
quality assurance to ensure the achievement and sustainment of goals and objectives; leading organizational design,
development, implementation and management of performance management and quality improvement initiatives and
programs to ensure staff and inmate safety and security, increasing operational efficiencies and promote informed
decision-making; and data collection, analysis, reporting, and overseeing the management and performance of quality
initiatives and programs identifying opportunities for improving performance.

You are seeking to engage in outside employment as a consultant with DBS Environmental Health and Nutritional
Consulting, LLC (DBS). In your role as a consultant you will perform menu reviews, menu development, nutritional
analysis, environmental inspections, and food safety analysis or inspections. You have represented that DBS provides
services upon request to both private and governmental entities. However, DBS is not a County vendor. It does not
provide any services to MDCR, nor does it preform any work for MDCR contractors. You have also indicated that you will
not interact with the same government employees in your outside employment as you currently do in your County
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employment; and you will not have the opportunity to recruit vendors, contractors, bidders, or members of the public to
use DBS’ products and/or services.

Legal Analysis

Sections 2-11.1(j) and (k) of the County Ethics Code prohibit County employees from engaging in outside employment
which would impair the County employee’s independence of judgment in the performance of his or her official duties or
create a conflict between the County employee’s public duties and his or her private interests. The County’s
Administrative Order 7-1 reiterates the general principle that County employees must conduct the public’s business
without even an appearance of conflicting loyalties: “Under no circumstances shall a County employee accept outside
employment…where a real or apparent conflict of interest with one’s official or public duties is possible.”

The Ethics Commission (COE) has developed guidelines to assist departments in their determinations on whether to
approve or deny an outside employment request. The guidelines attached herein provide examples of potential conflicts
between an employee’s public duties and his duties to his outside employer. Although these guidelines may serve as an
aid, final determination as to whether a County employee should engage in the proposed outside employment rests with
his or her supervisor. See RQO 04-168; INQ 06-23; INQ 18-24 (“The final decision regarding whether to grant permission
to engage in outside employment rests with the department director based on staffing and operational needs of the
department; personnel administration and performance issues as well as considerations of whether the outside
employment creates a prohibited conflict of interest under the County Ethics Code.” See INQ 18-24 (citing to RQO 00-10,
RQO 12-07, INQ 12-49 and INQ 13-28).

Generally, the COE Outside Employment Guidelines indicate that conflicting employment can occur when the outside
employment is closely related to the employee’s public duties and/or where the County employee deals with the same
people or entities in both his/her outside employment and in his/her public position, e.g., similar clients, suppliers, or
subcontractors. See COE’s Outside Employment Guidelines, November 2017.

After a review of all of the facts presented, it appears unlikely that the type of outside employment that you are seeking
to engage in would impair your independence of judgement in the performance of your duties because DBS does not
contract and is not seeking to contract with MDCR or the County; DBS does not perform any work for MDCR contractors;
you will not interact with the same government employees in your outside employment as in your County employment;
and you will not have the opportunity to recruit vendors, contractors, bidders, or members of the public to use DBS’
products or services.

However, certain limitations would apply: you may not use County time or resources in the furtherance of your outside
employment (County Ethics Code § 2-11.1(g)); you are prohibited from engaging in any activity which would require
disclosure of confidential information acquired by reason of your official position, and you may not use such information
directly or indirectly for your personal gain or benefit (County Ethics Code § 2-11.1(h)); you may not represent DBS in any
matter before the County (County Ethics Code § 2-11.1(m); and you may not use your official County position to secure
privileges or exemptions for yourself or others (County Ethics Code § 2-11.1(g)).

As a reminder, pursuant to 2-11 of the County Code, County employees are required to request permission to engage in
outside employment from their supervisor on a yearly basis. In addition, Section 2-11.1(k)(2) of the County’s Ethics Code
requires filing a financial disclosure form on a yearly basis.

This opinion is based on the facts presented. If any of these facts change, please contact us.

Sincerely,

radia turay
Staff Attorney
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Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust
19 W. Flagler Street, Suite 820
Miami, Fl 33130
Tel: (305) 350-0601
Fax: (305) 579-0273
Ethics.miamidade.gov

From: Graham, Debra (MDCR)
Sent: Wednesday, July 25, 2018 9:51 AM
To: Turay, Radia (COE) <Radia.Turay@miamidade.gov>
Subject: RE: Outside employment

Good Morning:

Certainly, see below:

Position: Division Chief, Regulatory & Compliance Division, Miami-Dade Corrections & Rehabilitation
Department

Responsibilities = Supervision of:

Commander – Food Services Bureau

The Food Services Bureau is responsible for all feeding of inmates incarcerated in Miami-Dade
Corrections & Rehabilitation Department facilities, producing an average of 13,000 meals per
day. Includes running one centralized cooking kitchen and three pantries (tray preparations,
heating functions, meal delivery). In addition, the Food Services Bureau runs three staff dining
areas.

Captain – Compliance, Inspections, & Auditing Bureau

Oversees compliance with correctional and accreditation standards, i.e. Florida Model Jail
Standards, American Correctional Association Standards, law, rules, and standards of
correction institutions, i.e. Prison Rape Elimination Act, ADA, and Fire and Life Safety
standards, etc.. Completes monthly facility inspections for safety & security, audits various
functions, such as fire and life safety, key control, security equipment, etc. Reviews all Uses of
Force incidents for trends, commonalities, violations, etc.

Sr. Business Analyst - Office of Performance Improvement and Management

Directs and monitors MDCR’s strategic system of quality assurance to ensure the achievement
and sustainment of goals and objectives. Responsibility for leading organizational design,
development, implementation and management of performance management (PM) and quality
improvement (QI) initiatives and programs to ensure staff and inmate safety and security,
increase operational efficiencies, and promote informed decision-making. Responsible for
data collection, analysis and reporting and overseeing the management and performance of
quality initiatives and programs and identifies opportunities for improving performance.

Compliance Coordinator
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The Compliance Coordinator has administrative responsibility for directing and monitoring
compliance with provisions of the Department of Justice (DOJ) Settlement Agreement (SA),
Consent Agreement (CA), and Summary Action Plan (SAP), as well as applicable federal, state,
and local laws and standards, and accreditation standards. The Compliance Coordinator
collaborates with MDCR and CHS to develop and enforce compliance related activities in
accordance with established deadlines.

Let me know if you have further questions.

Debra Graham, MS, RD, LD, REHS/RS, CJM
Division Chief
Miami-Dade Corrections & Rehabilitation Department
Regulatory and Compliance Division
786-263-6199
www.miamidade.gov

"Delivering Excellence Every Day"

From: Turay, Radia (COE)
Sent: Tuesday, July 24, 2018 4:42 PM
To: Graham, Debra (MDCR)
Subject: RE: Outside employment

Hello Chief Graham,

It was a pleasure speaking with you a few minutes ago. Can you please provide a brief description of your duties at
MDCR. I need to include it in the COE’s opinion.

Thanks,
Radia.

From: Graham, Debra (MDCR)
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 7:40 PM
To: Turay, Radia (COE) <Radia.Turay@miamidade.gov>
Subject: RE: Outside employment

Hello:

Please see responses below. Please also note that my responsibilities in this outside employment
capacity do not interact with Miami-Dade Corrections & Rehabilitation Department nor Miami-Dade
County. I would not in any capacity perform any responsibilities as part of the outside employment for
Miami-Dade County.
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
Sent: Thursday, July 19, 2018 4:56 PM
To: Graham, Debra (MDCR)
Subject: Outside employment

Hello Ms. Graham,

My name is Radia Turay. I am a staff attorney at the Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics. I was assigned to review your
request for outside employment to determine whether it presents any conflicts of interest with the County Ethics
Code. Please provide responses to the following questions:

1) Please describe the job responsibilities that you will have as a consultant with DBS Environmental Health and
Nutritional Consulting, LLC?
Responsibilities involve those that a Registered Dietitian would perform, i.e. menu reviews, menu development,
nutritional analysis, and those that a Registered Sanitarian would perform, such as environmental inspections,
food safety analysis or inspections, etc.

2) Please indicate for whom DBS will provide services (I.e. county vendor/contractors; the county; municipalities;
private individuals)?
DBS may provide services upon request from many different areas, such as private entities providing food
service or feeding functions, requests for nutritional analysis, menu planning, etc., inspection services for
environmental or food services entities, both private and governmental such as inspections of federally run
programs, i.e. ICE facilities. There are no services provided for Miami-Dade County.

3) Please provide the name of any county vendor or contractor that DBS will perform work for?
None

4) Does the county vendor of contractor that DBS performs work for have a contract with MDCR?
This is not applicable, no County vendor or contractor, and no contract with MDCR or Miami-Dade County

5) Would DBS be servicing that county vendor or contractors contract with MDCR?
Not applicable

6) Would you interact with the same government employees/ department in your outside employment as you
would in your position at the County?
No, no relation to Miami-Dade County, employees of Miami-Dade County or my position with Miami-Dade
County

7) Do you work in a position with the County that you have the opportunity to recruit vendors, contractors,
bidders, or members of the public to use your outside employment products or services?
No

8) Do you need a license to perform the work you do for the County?
For Miami-Dade County, no, but for the outside employment yes, Registered Dietitian and Registered Sanitarian

9) Does the County pay for that license?
No, they do not pay for either license, Registered Dietitian nor Registered Sanitarian

10) Would you use the same license in your outside employment?
I use the Registered Dietitian and Registered Sanitarian license in the outside employment, not a requirement
for my job with Miami-Dade County.

11) Please provide a telephone number at which I can reach you
786-251-0978
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Thanks for your anticipated cooperation with this matter.

radia turay
Staff Attorney
Miami-Dade Commission on Ethics and Public Trust
19 W. Flagler Street, Suite 820
Miami, Fl 33130
Tel: (305) 350-0601
Fax: (305) 579-0273
Ethics.miamidade.gov






